
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

February 06, 2024 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  February 5, 2024 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. To accept the recommendation to hire two firefighters - Chief Jude Mire. 

2. Discussion and possible action pertaining to the annual 2% pay increase on the anniversary date for 

Abbeville Police Department - Chief Mike Hardy. 

PRESENTATIONS 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the December 5, 2023 Committee meeting and the November 21, 2023, 

December 5,2023, December 19, 2023 and January 18, 2024 regular City Council meetings. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion and possible action to reinstate the overtime cap for the Abbeville Police Department. 

2. To authorize the purchase of tasers for a total cost of $97,323.60.  The payments will be 

approximately $19,464.71 per year for 5 years - Chief Mike Hardy. 

3. To approve a resolution to adopt the annual Louisiana Compliance questionnaire for audit 

engagements of government entities from the Legislative Auditor to be submitted to the auditing firm 

of Darnall, Sikes & Frederick, contracted by the city for the purpose of auditing fiscal year 2023. 

4. Discussion and possible action to surplus a wooden frame home located on city property located at 

303 Joffre Street, Abbeville, Louisiana and to advertise for public sealed bids. 

5. To accept the recommendation of the Abbeville Planning Commission to approve the adjustment of 

the boundary lines at 507 and 507 1/2 South Louisiana. 

6. To approve payment of partial payment estimate number 10 in the amount of $50,112.50 payable to 

Shaw Construction, LLC for the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation project. 

7. To approve the purchase of two regulators at a estimated cost of approximately $87,000.00. 

8. To approve payment of partial payment estimate number 4 in the amount of $46,876.44 payable to 

Southern Constructors, LLC relative to the New Fishing Pier and Wharf at LaFitte Drive-In Park. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

5.        Mayor 

1



6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Executive session to discuss pending litigation pertaining to the Abbeville Police Department 

regarding pay increases. 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



3



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

December 5, 2023 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on December 5, 

2023 at 6:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

 Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public works & Parks Director 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 
   

Mayor White stated that we are here for a joint meeting of the Finance Committee chaired by 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. and the Ordinance Committee chaired by Councilman Tony 

Hardy.  Both items pertain to the proposed 2024 budget.  She asked if there were any comments 

from the public on any agenda item.  There were none.   

 

She turned the floor over to Councilman Touchet.  He stated that the agenda item for the Finance 

Committee meeting is the presentation of the 2024 budget.  He asked Mr. Steve Moosa to provide 

the presentation.   

 

Mr. Moosa discussed various highlights and details of the proposed budget.  After presentation, 

Chief Hardy reminded Mr. Moosa that he will receive two grants totaling $33,5000.00 in 2024.  

Councilman Touchet asked Mr. Moosa to note that they intend to vote to raise the pay of the 

Mayor to $90,000.00 per year. 

 

  Mayor White turned the floor over to Councilman Tony Hardy.  He stated that an ordinance 

  would need to be considered in order to adopt the budget at the next meeting scheduled for 

  December 19, 2023. 

 

 -01 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to recommend to the 

 City Council to approve an ordinance at their next regular City Council meeting scheduled for 

 December 19, 2023 to adopt the 2024 budget and amend the 2023 budget.  The motion carried 

 unanimously. 

 

 There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

4



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

November 21, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on November 21, 2023 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr.,  
    Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Doris Langlinais, Assistant Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Byron Dozier, QSA Parks & Recreation Coordinator 

 Nikki Vidos, VEDA, Cajun Christmas Celebration 

 Kayla Link, VEDA 

 Lauren Trahan, Nehemiah Project 

 Rob Roy, Abbeville Rotary Club 

 Joey Arceneaux, to complain about his neighbor 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor White asked Ms. 

Lauren Trahan to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Assistant Fire Chief 

Doris Langlinais to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Ms. Nikki Vidos announced that the annual Cajun Christmas Celebration is scheduled for 

December 9, 2023.  She discussed the various planned activities associated with the Celebration.  

There will also be a food court, vendors and a parade.  Mr. Rob Roy also discussed the car show 

held in conjunction with the Celebration. 

 

Ms. Kayla Link was recently appointed as the Economic Development Liaison with the Vermilion 

Economic Development Alliance.  She was as the meeting to introduce herself and to discuss 

upcoming events that will be held in January 2024. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the 

budget to actual report for October 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Joey Arceneaux had requested to be on the agenda to complain about the condition of his 

neighbor’s property at 819 N. Shireview.  Mr. Arceneaux stated that he moved here two years 

ago and has been complaining about the condition of the property for the last year and one-

half.  He has been in contact with Councilman Broussard about the situation.  He distributed 

5



pictures and has been working with Bryan Fisher.  Mr. Arceneaux discussed his complaints in 

great detail and does not believe enough is being done.  He also complained that the dog is not 

on a leash.  Mayor White stated that we have a leash law and the dog has to be on a leash even 

in your yard unless you keep them in a fenced in area.  Chief Hardy stated that the cars have 

been tagged.  They have been moved since then but the cars that are there now are different.  

Mrs. Landry was at the meeting to represent her brother, Dale Lee who is the property owner.  

The tent that Mr. Arceneaux was speaking about was in her yard and as soon as she received 

the complaint, she picked up the tent.  There are only three vehicles now and there is not trash 

all over the yard because it has been cleaned.  Mr. Bryan Fisher stated that both parties are 

somewhat correct.  He visited the property and spoke to the individual.  He tagged some 

vehicles.  He reinspected the property a few days later and the grass had been cut and some of 

the vehicles were gone.  It looked as though he was repairing the vehicles that were there.  He 

received another complaint again so he went out to inspect the property.  The grass had been 

continued to be cut but there were a few additional infractions.  There were tires at the road, a 

few vehicles and a couple of boat trailers.  Mrs. Landry stated that the tires are to be picked up.  

Mayor White informed them that the Police Jury will not pick up tires.  You have to take those 

directly to the dump.  The limit is 5 per day and you have to show a pictured ID to prove that you 

are a resident of the parish.  We will cite anyone found to be putting tires on the side of the 

road.  Mr. Scott Landry stated that he is the brother-in-law of Dale Lee.  His brother-in-law 

struggles both mentally, emotionally and physically every day.  He gets things given to him from 

other people to repair and sell.  They want to move forward with this issue.  Mr. Landry will 

work with Councilman Broussard and will ask him to come out and visit with him so that he can 

tell us what looks right.  Public nuisance is very subjective.  We will work on it and address it on 

behalf of my brother-in-law.  Councilman Broussard stated that he would go visit with the 

Landry’s with Bryan to get the issue handled. 

 

Mr. Rob Roy stated that he would like to have 3 cameras that would live stream through the City 

of Abbeville website.  One camera would be on City Hall and the other two would be in the 

Square.  The cost of the hardware is $5,184.85 and Rotary would pay ½ of the expense.  Rotary 

would ask the City to pay the $75.00 per month hosting fee.  The Rotary would also like the feed 

to be on their website too.  Councilman Touchet asked about the City partnering on this venture.  

Bart stated that he would have to research it to see if it serves a public benefit.  Councilman 

Touchet stated that the City could just take on this project ourselves.  Mayor White stated that 

the Rotary could just make a donation to the City and it would be a City project.  Bart would 

have to give his legal opinion.  Ms. Lauren Trahan stated that a live stream is wide open.  There 

is no way to edit it.  Waivers may have to be completed.   

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to allow the live 

streaming for events downtown to be a City Project once Bart delivers his legal opinion and to 

move forward if appropriate.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

912 S. Lyman – Ms. Shartamia Williams appeared to represent the property for her mother and 

father.  It is their intention to try to renovate the mobile home but her father is ill.  Mr. Bryan 

Fisher stated that the mobile home is too far in disrepair to be repaired and contains a lot of bad 

areas.  Ms. Williams stated that she will get with her parents and then advise Bryan.  They will 

tear down the mobile home themselves. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to condemn the 

structure at 912 S. Lyman and to allow the property owner to tear down the structure.  If no 

progress is made, then the property will go out for bid for demolition.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

6



 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to award the 

contract for the demolition of the structure located at 821 Alphonse to the low bidder, 

Lawnmasters, in the amount of $6,800.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to award the 

contract for the demolition of the structure located at 608 Hawthorne to the low bidder, 

Savoy’s Excavation and Demolition, LLC, in the amount of $3,495.00.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify the 

acceptance of the quote from Glenn Lege Construction, Inc. in the amount of $44,398.42 to 

overlay about 600 feet of road on North Airport Road and to pay the expense from the Airway 

Industrial Park Fund.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/Hardy 

Resolution R23-35 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the 

Vermilion Parish Police Jury for the overlay of about 600 feet of road on North Airport Road 

whereby the Vermilion Parish Police Jury will contribute $10,000.00 towards the cost of the 

project.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to table the 

request to grant a variance for the landscaping for the free-standing sign for State Farm located 

at 101 S. St. Charles Street.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White provided an update on the St. Theresa Holy Family Center.  The City obtained an 

appraisal of the property.  The members of the congregation have decided to keep the center. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works and Parks Director 

- Go mow program has started.  The crews are cleaning the railroad track.  The tennis court 

fence is back up.  They are still working on the ADA compliance project at the park. 

 

Bryon Dozier, Park and Recreation Coordinator for QSA 

- Flag football has been delayed due to the weather.  They will begin basketball next week.  

There will be a Toys for Tots tournament on December 2, 2023 and December 3, 2023. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- There was a town hall meeting held last week for the Complete Streets project.  We will 

be installing the demonstration on December 15, 2023 and December 16, 2023.  It will 

remain up for one month.  After that we will gather feedback. 

- On November 27, 2023 there will be a State of the Community breakfast at Pincher’s in 

Maurice beginning at 8:00 AM.  It is hosted by the chamber. 

- Capital outlay requests are due by April 1, 2024.  We will apply for streets, electrical grid 

upgrades and water plant upgrades.  LCDBG applications were due last week.  We applied 

for upgrades to the sewer system on the northeast side of the city and to add SCADA.   

- LITA Corp has assigned us some grant writers.  We are looking at Department of Energy 

grants and the needs of our sewer plant. 

7



- We are working on the 2024 budget. 

 

Doris Langlinais, Assistant Fire Chief 

- They will continue with the fire hydrant painting project.  The fire training building will be 

completed by the end of the week.  Mayor White asked Chief Langlinais if the fire 

department can assist them with street washing for the pop-up demonstration. 

 

Councilman Carlton Campbell 

- Asked Chief Hardy to look into kids riding 4-wheelers in town early in the morning. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- The Christmas Stroll will be held on December 7, 2023 and the Cajun Christmas 

Celebration will be held on December 9, 2023. 

 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

- He has met with the City Attorney to make sure he can continue his position of 

Councilman since he has been appointed the Superintendent of Lafayette Parish schools.  

The City Attorney has confirmed with the Attorney General and the Ethics Board that he 

can continue to do both.  He will continue to work with the Mayor and City Council. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to enter into 

executive session to discuss prospective litigation after formal demand by the Abbeville Police 

Department regarding pay increases.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to reconvene 

the regular meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White explained that the executive session was held to discuss prospective litigation after 

formal demand letter by the Abbeville Police Department regarding pay increases.  No decision 

was made.  She turned the floor over to Bart Broussard.  Bart stated that he received a demand 

letter from an attorney on behalf of the Abbeville Police Department. Certain police officers not 

the entire police department.  He will need the Council to instruct him on how to respond to the 

letter.  We will need a motion to either reject or accept their demand. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

our legal council to draft a letter to reject the demand on behalf of the police officers.  The 

motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  3(Campbell, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSTAIN: 1(Hardy) 

 ABSENT: 1(T. Broussard) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

8



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

December 19, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 19, 2023 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Plant Superintendent 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Byron Dozier, QSA Parks & Recreation Coordinator 

 Elaine Dill, Municipal Employees Civil Service Board 

 Charles Dill, Abbeville Planning Commission 

 Kevin Bihm and David Bergeron, LEPA 

 Kristin Moore, Pathways Forward 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor White asked 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Mr. 

Charles Dill to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-01 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

annual 2% pay increase for the unclassified position of the Mayor’s Administrative Assistant.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

recommendation to appoint Marc Wright to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville 

Police Department pending successful completion of all post-hire assessments.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Kristin Moore with Pathways Forward discussed the recent visits to several colleges with 

several students.  The tours were held early mornings on Saturday.  The students and their 

parents are very dedicated.  30 students participated.  She will also be researching workforce for 

those who aren’t going to college. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

November 2023 budget to actual report.  The motion carried unanimously. 

9



 

Mayor White announced that the January 2, 2024 regular City Council meeting has been 

cancelled because City Hall is closed that day.  No action was necessary. 

 

Mayor White began a discussion to add a deputy City Marshal.  The deputy City Marshal could 

assist us with code enforcement.  The prospective candidate is Reggie Hilts who currently works 

as a school resource officer at J. H. Williams.  The SRO is under contract with the City Marshal’s 

office.  He would continue to be under the control of the City Marshal’s office and would 

continue serving as an SRO.  When he is not an SRO, we could utilize him in various ways.  We 

are not quite ready to move forward at this point as we are conducting additional research.  

Mayor White was looking for advice of the City Council as to whether they wanted him 

employed part-time or full-time. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to take the 

topic of employing a deputy City Marshal under advisement for the City Attorney to conduct 

additional research but if and when appropriate, to open it up as a full-time position.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

T. Broussard/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-38 

 

A resolution setting forth rules to govern expenditures and transfers pertaining to the Road 

Maintenance Fund. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to table 

any action on the acquisition of tasers for the Abbeville Police Department in order to get 

additional information and to bring it back up at a future meeting when all information is 

obtained.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to enter into a public 

hearing to receive public comments pertaining to an ordinance to adopt the 2024 budget and 

amend the 2023 budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments pertaining to the proposed ordinance to adopt 

the 2024 budget and amend the 2023 budget.  There were none. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene the 

regular meeting from the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hardy/T. Broussard 

Ordinance 23-10 

 

An ordinance to adopt the 2024 budget and the amended 2023 budget. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  5(Campbell, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

10



Therefore, the ordinance was adopted unanimously. 

 

Campbell/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-39 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with local 

municipalities/governing bodies to provide reciprocal aid to each other in times of need. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White stated that our current electrical provider contract will be expiring in May 2024.  

Our current provider, Constellation, offered a 45% increase.  We did not feel that would be 

acceptable so we sought out request for proposals from other providers.  Constellation did come 

back with an offer but it was still 19% higher than the current rates.  Right now, LEPA is 9% 

higher and that is the best offer we have had.  Other municipalities are in the same boat we are 

in.  Councilman Touchet stated that the sweet deal is over.  The product of a fixed rate is no 

longer offered.  We can’t have what we have had in the past.  The rate will depend on the 

market rather than be fixed.  We have no other choice.  LEPA has provided the best deal.  

Councilman Broussard added that this is the best rate we can get at this time.  Mayor White 

stated that if we take action tonight, then the LEPA board will meet in January 2024.  If they 

approve it, we will give notice to MISO by February 15, 2024 and we will start the new contract 

with LEPA on June 1, 2024. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to move 

forward with LEPA as the power provider for the City of Abbeville beginning June 1, 2024.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-40 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute all necessary documents in order to proceed with 

LEPA as the power provider for the City of Abbeville. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hardy/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-41 

 

A resolution designating the City of Abbeville holidays for 2024. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute a contract in the amount of $60,000.00 with CPEX for consulting services for 

the Abbeville Master Plan.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White provided a Complete Streets Demonstration update.  This is recommended to 

make the people using the courthouse safer.  It slows traffic down by design.  It makes it safer 

for people who have to cross the street.  Now that those streets are no longer state highways 

and are City streets, we are trying to figure out the design before we go to construction.  This is 

something that we have never done before.  She is aware that there have been some negative 

11



comments and we have also had some very positive comments.  Anyone can contact her office 

regarding the demonstration.  We will have other times to come and give public comment 

before permanent design.  The cones will stay up one month.  We stripped the road where 80 to 

90 percent of the vehicles can make the turn but they have to slow down to make them.  Every 

day we go out and check the cones and where there are cones ran over multiple times, we 

adjust those.  The goal at the end of the month is to know what the tightest radius is that we 

can have to slow the traffic down and still have the vehicles manipulate the turn.  They have to 

hit their brakes to make the turn and that is the whole point.  We also utilized reverse angle 

parking.  Many people are adjusting to that.  The reverse angle parking is the most 

recommended safety improvement for one-way streets in a high pedestrian area.  Most people 

in the public say, “Do you know how dangerous it is to stop and back up into a spot”?  Her 

response to that is, “When you go to parallel park, tell me what you do?  You go up and back up 

and then have to maneuver several times to get into a parallel spot”.  With a 45-degree angle 

rear entry parking, you pass the spot up, put your blinker on and then back up at a 45-degree 

angle in one maneuver.  When you are leaving the parking spot, you can see anyone that is 

crossing on foot or on a bicycle right in front of you.  It makes it much safer for when you are 

pulling out into the road.  It is a change and our community does not like change.  If it is not the 

right thing, we will not fix it into the final product.  There are a lot of people happy with how 

many parking spots we have next to the courthouse.  There are a lot of people that are happy 

that they can park in those spots to get access to the courthouse.  It will take some adjusting but 

it was done with research and merit and with the safety of our community in mind.  These safety 

concepts have been tried in other communities.  We will take all sides seriously.  The 

demonstration was completely funded by a grant.   

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve 

payment of partial payment number 2 in the amount of $43,691.35 payable to Southern 

Constructors, LLC relative to the new fishing pier and wharf project at LaFitte Drive-In Park.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify 

payment of the invoice to Capital Electric & Supply LLC in the amount of $11,765.00 to change 

the electrical panel at the Abbeville RV Park sewer pump station.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify the 

expense of $12,217.85 to repair the belt press at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to ratify the 

payment to Ray Chevrolet in the amount of $9,342.30 for the repair of Abbeville Police 

Department Unit 595, a 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to ratify payment 

in the amount of $39,999.99 to Crossroads Dodge, Chrysler, Jeep, Ram for the purchase of a 

used 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe for the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to award the 

bid for the demolition of the structure at 1110 Martin Luther King Drive to the low bidder, 

Acadiana Landfill, in the amount of $6,769.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

12



-16 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve payment 

of partial payment estimate number 9 in the amount of $19,522.50 payable to Shaw 

Construction Services, LLC relative to the FY 2021 LCDBG Sewer rehabilitation project.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator, QSA 

- Started first weekend of Biddy Basketball last weekend. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- Mayor White asked for an update on Maison du Monde.  Chief Hardy stated that he would 

ask the officer who responded.  She asked Chief Hardy to provide an update to the owner of 

the facility.  He called for that. 

- Councilman Touchet asked Chief Hardy about the cameras at Stonebridge.  Chief Hardy 

stated that the City attorney is speaking with their attorney.  They have not complied.  

Councilman Touchet stated that we need to hold the accountable.  Mayor White stated that 

we are supposed to be writing citations to them every day for non-compliance.  Bart stated 

that he thought all of this had been taken care of.  Councilman Touchet would like to meet in 

a meeting with them to discuss his concerns.  Mayor White stated that Chief Hardy should 

provide an update to Bart and then Bart can pursue this. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

13



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

January 18, 2024 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on January 18, 2024 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Stewart Head, Electrical Superintendent 

 Willie Leger, Street Maintenance Superintendent 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Gene Sellers, Engineer 

 Todd Vincent, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Luke Hebert, C. H. Fenstermaker 

 James Noel, Jr., Developer for Dovetail Subdivision 

 Rockell Ficklen, to complain about her neighbor’s dog 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor White asked 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead those assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  l e d  the 

assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White explained that the regular meeting was originally scheduled for Tuesday, January 

16, 2024 but because of the freezing temperatures and the slick roads the meeting was 

rescheduled for today. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to accept 

the recommendation of termination for Warren Alpha, a Police Officer with the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to accept the 

resignation of Sargeant Tracy Sonnier from the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to accept the 

recommendation to appoint Shawn Sunday to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville 

Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White discussed the Complete Streets demonstration renderings.  She encouraged 

14



everyone to complete the survey that is available in order to get feedback from the community 

about the demonstration.  There will also be a public meeting on January 30, 2024 at the LSU Ag 

Center beginning at 5:30 PM.  All the information collected will be utilized to prepare the final 

plans.  Those plans will most likely be presented to the Abbeville Planning Commission first and 

then to the City Council for approval. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

minutes from the November 7, 2023 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to ratify bills paid in 

the month of December 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

December 2023 budget to actual report.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Rockell Ficklen had requested to be on the agenda to complain about her neighbor’s dog.  

She lives at 703 Clover and the neighbor lives at 701 Clover.  She has contacted the Police 

Department but nothing was done.  The dog is loose and has attacked her dog.  Chief Hardy 

stated that he would pull the file and offered Ms. Ficklen his business card so that she can 

contact him directly.  Bart Broussard stated that the complaint can be taken by either the 

Abbeville Police Department or animal control.  He then explained the next steps that should be 

taken according to the City’s ordinance. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to award the 

bid for the demolition of the structure located at 814 Solomon to the low bidder, Vermilion 

Shell & Limestone, at a cost of $8,000.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the audit engagement letter with Darnall, Sikes and Frederick for the audit 

services for fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the Agreed Upon Procedures Audit engagement letter for the fiscal year 

ended December 31, 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White explained that there will be no action needed for the Class B liquor permit for 

Smoke N Go #405 located at 201 S. State Street because the ordinance was changed.  All future 

liquor license permits will not come before the City Council due to the new administrative 

permitting approval process in the ordinance. 

 

-10 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve payment of 

estimate for partial payment number 3 in the amount of $119,143.23 payable to Southern 

Constructors, LLC relative to the LCDBG-LLOP new fishing pier and wharf project at LaFitte 

Drive-In Park.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hardy/B. Broussard 

Resolution R24-01 

 

A resolution pertaining to the Municipal Water Pollution Prevention Environmental Audit Report 

(January 2022 through December 2022). 

15



 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

quote from Echo Powerline in the amount of $68,000 for labor and approximately 

$12,000(purchased by the City separately from another vendor) for materials for an 

interconnect line to allow load shift in summer months.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

quote from Altec in the amount of $8,613.06 for the repair of Unit 493, the pole truck in the 

Electrical Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the master agreement for engineering and associated services for C. H. 

Fenstermaker Associates, LLC to prepare the MS4 permit and to provide other services as 

needed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

repairs to the Cypress Lift Station by Griner Drilling and Luke Deshotel Construction.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

A discussion began regarding the installation of a gravity sewer line extension at an estimated 

cost of $152,000.00 and future upgrades to the Ollie Sewer Lift Station at an estimate cost of 

$175,000.00 to accommodate Phase I of the new Dovetail Subdivision off of Wildcat Drive.  

Councilman Touchet stated that the electrical extension was approved at a previous meeting so 

we should approve both of these so the developer can begin the subdivision.  At completion the 

subdivision will contain over 100 houses.  The sewer gravity line is on the right-of-way and we 

will need to upgrade that to serve the subdivision.  We will also need to upgrade the sewer lift 

station at some point.  We would do this for anyone else.  The area does not flood.  If we don’t 

approve this, the developer will go elsewhere.  We will get the road dedicated to us once the 

subdivision is completed.  This subdivision will accommodate those getting jobs at the new solar 

facility in New Iberia.  Councilman Broussard asked the number of homes that will be built in the 

subdivision.  There will be 118 homes in total and Phase I will be 65 homes on the Abbeville High 

School side.  Mayor White stated that after the electrical work was approved, we realized that 

Ollie Lift Station can only handle about 30 more homes.  We also didn’t know we would have to 

install a gravity sewer line either.  We did apply for LCDBG funding for this upgrade and others 

but we are not sure we will receive that.   We won’t know about the award of that until next 

year.  In the future we need to look for all needed upgrades when a developer approaches to 

develop a property so that we know all expenses upfront. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to agree to install a 

sewer gravity line extension at an approximate cost of $152,000.00 and future upgrades to the 

Ollie Sewer Lift Station at an estimated cost of $175,000.00 to accommodate Phase I of the new 

Dovetail Subdivision off of Wildcat Drive.  The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereon 

was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Campbell, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

16



-16 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to authorize the 

Mayor to execute a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between the City of Abbeville and Noel 

Land Investments, LLC regarding utility installations for Dovetail Subdivision.  The motion was 

put to a vote and the vote thereon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Campbell, B. Broussard, Touchet, Hardy) 

 NAYS:  1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

Mayor White thanked all involved in helping with the recent freeze and the staffing of the 

warming center. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- Distributed the 2023 stats of calls responded to. 

- Councilman Touchet asked about the compliance of Stonebridge with the cameras and 

security.  Chief Hardy stated that they are still not in compliance.  Bart stated that he would 

contact their attorney again.  The opinion of Stonebridge’s attorney is that they are 

grandfathered in.  You cannot retroactively govern.  Bart stated that one year ago, he was 

told in an email that they had the required cameras and there was someone on security 

duty.  Chief Hardy stated that was not the case.  Bart stated that he was not informed that 

they were not in compliance.  There is obviously a communication disconnect.   

 

-17 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to enter into 

executive session to discuss pending litigation pertaining to the Abbeville Police Department 

employees regarding pay increases.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-18 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to 

reconvene the regular meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White explained that the executive session was held to discuss pending litigation filed by 

some Abbeville Police Department employees regarding their pay.  Mr. Bart Broussard stated 

that no action is needed at this time. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

17



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

December 5, 2023 

 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 5, 2023 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 
    Hardy 

 
Members Absent: None 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney  

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Ann Hardy, Director of Municipal Employees Civil Service 

 Chris Gautreaux, Director of Public Works & Parks 

 Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Plant Superintendent 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Todd Vincent, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Byron Dozier, QSA Parks & Recreation Coordinator 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 

   

Mayor White called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  Mayor White led those 

assembled in prayer. M a y o r  W h i t e  asked Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. to lead the 

assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Mayor White explained that she will table item number one under personnel until the next 

meeting. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills paid in 

the month of November 2023.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to accept the 

recommendation of the Municipal Employees Civil Service Board to amend the sick leave and 

leave without pay policies.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White explained that Ali Miller requested that the City contribute to the pay for a part-

time employee to help at the Cultural Center because Cristian cannot always be there because 

she is needed for projects at City Hall.  Cristian stated that when she does have to leave and no 

one else is at the Center, she leaves a note on the door with her cellphone number.  Anyone 

needing access to the facility can call her and she can go and meet them.  Mayor White wanted 

to know if the Council wanted the budget adjusted for this request.  The City of Abbeville is the 

only municipality in the parish contributing and paying expenses for the Center.  Ali stated that 

she sill also reach out to other municipalities to ask them to contribute.  The Council did not 

18



move so the Mayor stated that we will pull Cristian as needed and she can leave a note on the 

door as she currently does. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to table any 

action pertaining to the request by the tourist director at the Abbeville Cultural & Historical 

Alliance Center for the City to contribute to the pay of a part-time worker at the Cultural 

Center.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/B. Broussard 

Resolution R23-36 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute a quit claim deed regarding property in Eastridge 

Subdivision. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to award the 

contract for the demolition of the structure at 803 South Guegnon to the low bidder, HIDCO, in 

the amount of $15,151.00.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chief Hardy wanted the Council to increase his 2024 budget by $15,000.00 for the care and 

equipment for the K-9.  Councilman Touchet asked Mayor White what is his current budget for 

2023 and 2024.  Mayor White stated $3,660,000.00 for 2023 and $3,755,000.00 for 2024.  

Councilman Touchet asked if all the money had been spent from this year’s budget.  Chief Hardy 

said it had not.  Councilman Touchet suggested that Chief Hardy find $10,000 already in the 

2023 budget to modify the unit for the K-9 and then find $5,000 in next year’s budget for the 

other expenses.  They will not increase his budget because the funds he already has should be 

adequate. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize 

Chief Hardy to expend $10,000.00 to modify the Police Unit for the K-9 with funds he already 

has left in the 2023 budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to authorize 

the Mayor to execute the agreement for application of treated sewage sludge for beneficial 

agricultural use between the City of Abbeville and Scott LeMaire and Tammy LeMaire Gaspard.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to award the 

contract for the subsurface geotechnical investigations at the Abbeville Water Treatment Plant 

to the low bidder, Raba Kistner from Lafayette, Louisiana, in the amount of $9,000.00.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to authorize 

the acquisition of two dump trucks in 2024, one for the wastewater department and one for 

the street department, by either direct purchase or by lease.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/T. Broussard 

Resolution R23-37 

 

A resolution accepting the contract with Quality Sports Authority effective January 1, 2024 and 

19



to authorize the Mayor to execute the same. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Todd Vincent, Engineer 

- Provided an update on the LaFitte Park Pier and Wharf project and the LCDBG Sewer System 

Rehabilitation project. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works and Park Director 

- Fixed pot holes on South East Street.  

 

Byron Dozier, Parks and Recreation Coordinator for QSA 

- Just had Toys for Tots tournament.  It was with 36 teams.  Had 950 people in park Saturday 

and 780 people in park on Sunday.  Basketball will run from December 15, 2023 through 

January 21, 2024.  He is already visiting with the high school baseball coaches for the 

upcoming season. 

 

Mayor Roslyn White 

- We have had $11 million investments from grants pledged to Abbeville in the last 16 

months.   That will affect roads, water plant, fishing pier and strategic planning.  That cost 

to the taxpayers will only be $700,000.00.  We will make sure that every area of our 

community sees improvements over the next 10 years. 

 

Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

- Thanked David Ashley with F & R Air Conditioning for the donation of 50 gift cards.  The 

police officers will be stopping motorists that show good driving habits and awarding them a 

gift card. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- The Christmas Stroll is this Thursday and the Cajun Christmas Celebration will be held on 

Saturday, weather permitting.  They may have to alter their plans due to the predicted 

weather on Saturday.  They hope to announce any changes by Thursday or Friday. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- There is a big Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. celebration organized by the Vermilion Reach Group 

that will take place in January. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41


	Top
	1.	Fire department hires
	2.	Annual 2% for APD
	APD 2% list

	1.	Minutes
	December 5,  2023 Committee meeting
	November 21, 2023 regular meeting
	December 19, 2023 regular meeting
	January 18, 2024 regular meeting
	December 5, 2023 regular meeting

	1.	APD overtime Cap
	2.	Tasers
	Taser quote

	3.	Audit resolution
	Resolution-legislative auditor questionnaire

	4.	303 Joffre-surplus
	5.	Boundary adjustment
	6.	PPE 10 Sewer System Rehab
	9162-04 PPE#10 - Partial Execution

	7.	Purchase of regulators
	8.	Fishing pier payment
	PPE # Lafitte Park

	1.	None
	1.	Executive session-APD employees pay
	Bottom

